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77. Compiling the necessary reports and preparing the invoices is a multi-step and time-consuming process.  Currently, the deadline for invoicing CINA/TPR cases is 20 days after the end of the preceding month’s activities.  The current RFP is proposing to cut that time period in half, due on the 10th calendar day.  Rushing the process in this manner will not only be burdensome to providers but also may lead to inaccuracies in the invoices and reports.  What is the Department’s rationale for making this dramatic change in practice?

This is a new solicitation and the requirements have changed.  Further, the changes are being made to accommodate MLSP and DHR internal procedures.
78. On Attachment I, the billing invoice, does not appear to require the case name (as there is no place for this information).  Will the provider, therefore, only be required to submit the number of hearings that occurred in the prior month for previously unbilled cases?

Yes.  In addition, MLSP will also require the Contractor to submit client case information via a Monthly Client Case List.  A sample case list form is included as Attachment T and made a part of the RFP.  
79. 2.24 A (Payment Terms/Billing) states that payment shall be made on a monthly basis by the 10th day of each month fo rthe preceding month’s activities.  As invoices for the preceding month’s activity are due on the 10th calendar day, does this mean that upon receipt of correctly prepared invoices and reports that the State will pay the invoices detailing the preceding month’s activity, within a week’s time (on 10th working day)?

No.  The Department will issue payments within 30 days upon receipt of an acceptable invoice.  See Amendment #  4.
80. Attachment I, the billing invoice, includes a space for the annual contract amount and for the amount paid to date.  Does this mean that if the State has underestimated the number of cases in a jurisdiction that the provider will not be paid for cases in excess of the projected number?

Caseload numbers are projections only. Contractors are required to monitor their projected caseload and not-to-exceed contracted dollar amounts in the base and option periods.  Exceeding the contracted dollar amount may result in non-payment for services rendered.

81. Should a provider use the incorrect projected number of cases when bidding for a one-provider jurisdiction, or should they bid for a projected number of cases based on their own assessment of that number, derived from their experience and knowledge of the jurisdiction?

The Offeror should use the Projected Caseload Charts provided in the RFP.  However, if the Offeror discovers any discrepancies or ambiguities, Offerors should follow the instructions in RFP Section 1.5.

THE FOLLOWING ARE QUESTIONS FROM THE PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE THAT REQUIRED A RESPONSE

82. And when you say that the best value awardee has first right of refusal on cases, what information do they receive in order to make that judgment?  Just we have a case?  Or do they get to see the whole case and just keep the good ones and kick down to the other guy the ones that are more time consuming?

See response to question 50 in Questions and Responses #3 dated 9/4.  

83. So if you are trying to refer to differences in the jurisdictions in that proposal, in that one section where you guys ask for other information, so you want all the different variations that you believe to be true in that one proposal for each jurisdiction?  

Please refer to Section 6.1 of the RFP, Two-Volume Submission.  Only one (1) Technical Proposal for Functional Area I and Functional Area II shall be provided regardless of the number of jurisdictions proposed to serve.  If there are variations in service delivery based on jurisdictional nuances in court practices or client needs, those variations shall be described in detail on a separate page(s) for each jurisdiction affected.  
The information must be clearly identified in the Proposal.

84. So you have one proposal for each jurisdiction with one envelope, and then several envelopes for the financial piece, for all the jurisdictions?

No. Please see response #83 above and refer to Sections 6.1 and 6.3 of the RFP for Financial responses.  

85. So for the guardianship issue, you want one technical proposal, and I understand that.  That would be a blanket for everything.  Now if you were to bid on two different jurisdictions, you want in the same envelope both bids as far as pricing in the same envelope for those jurisdictions?

Please refer to Section 6.1 and 6.3 of the RFP as stated in the response above.  

86. But with the financial piece of it if there are particular jurisdictional concerns, for example that would make it more, that would vary the cost based on that jurisdiction, should that be addressed as well in the financial piece of it?  Or not? 

Yes.  Variations in prices per jurisdiction should be addressed in the respective Financial Proposal. 

87. Previously, if you were awarded multiple jurisdictions, each jurisdiction was in fact considered a separate contract.  So under this particular proposal would they still be considered separate contracts?  Or for example if a bidder were to bid on multiple jurisdictions would that be all under the umbrella of one contract?  

REVISED RESPONSE:  There will be one Contract for each successful Offeror, which will include all jurisdictions awarded.  
88. In our reference letters, if someone is going to make a reference for two counties, do you need two letters?  Or is one letter sufficient?

REVISED RESPONSE:  Three reference letters are required to be submitted with the Proposal regardless of the number of jurisdictions the Offeror proposes to serve.
89. In the evaluation criteria, what weight will have other State contracts be given?  If someone has not had a State contract before but has done, say, federal work, is that going to be a disadvantage?

REVISED RESPONSE: (See Amendment #4) The evaluation criteria have been revised and are listed in descending order of importance. No specific weight is given to the individual criteria.  The failure to have other State contracts is not considered a disadvantage, as it is not a minimum qualification to respond to this solicitation.

90. If you have Maryland specific experience, if you’ve practiced in the State for years, but you’ve not had a Maryland State contract, what impact does that have on your evaluation score?

See response to question 89 above. 

91. In previous contracts they would tell you the percentage that, even with the technical proposal what weight each of the areas carried.  And so I’m just confused as to why now we can’t get the breakdown of what the ranking that the committee is going to be looking at. 

There are no weights or points assigned to the evaluation criteria. Please refer to Section 7.5 of the RFP Criteria for Technical Evaluation.

92. Where in the procurement regs does it allow you that kind of latitude to not assign weights and to not inform the offerors of that?  

The procurement laws only indicate that proposals be evaluated and a recommendation made by the Procurement Officer.  The evaluation criteria are listed within the RFP.  The proposals must address the evaluation criteria that the committee will review.  That is all the procurement laws require.  Each agency may do it differently, but in this solicitation, there are no point values or weights assigned to each evaluation criteria.  

93. Is there a DHR section of the procurement regs?

State Procurement regulations are in Title 21 of the Maryland Code of Regulations (COMAR).  See COMAR 21.05.03.02 and 03.
94. If there is another protest, does the incumbent continue to get all the cases even though you will have received proposals from many qualified firms?  Is it to their economic advantage to continue to protest, continue to take this thing back into litigation so that they continue to have the business?  

Current contracts will remain in place until new contract awards are made.  

95. In many of the jurisdictions there is no access to the daily dockets.  Is that really what you want?

No. References to access or receipt of the daily dockets have been removed in Attachments S and S1.  See Amendment # 5.
96. Is it ever permissible to have a paralegal or legal assistant do the client interview?  

REVISED RESPONSE: Yes 

97. Would a paralegal be defined as someone that has had the educational, formal educational training, and has a certificate as a paralegal?

REVISED RESPONSE:  A paralegal or legal assistant that is assigned to work under this Contract shall possess, at a minimum, the requisite two (2) year experience in child welfare law (FA: 1) or two (2) years experience in elder law, adult disability, family law or related field (FA: II),

98. Is a certificate necessary if someone has a specified number of years of experience?

No.  See response to question 97 above.

99. In the last bid the attorney/client ratio was 1:150.  This time it is 1:100.  Even if you estimate ten hours per caseload, but that’s only a thousand man hours a year.  Full time would be 2080.  Can it be taken under advisement to increase the number?

The ratio has been changed to 1:150. See Amendment #3.

100. Which forms need to be included in the technical proposal and which forms need to be included in the financial proposal?

Please refer to Section 6.2 for the Technical Proposal form requirements and Section 6.3 for the Financial Proposal form requirements.
101. Can the Project Manager also act as an attorney providing legal services under the contract?  There does not seem to be any prohibition against this.  
Yes.

102. As a perspective Offeror under CINA/APS RFP, an incumbent on those efforts for the past 19 years in Washington County the following questions have arisen regarding the Monthly Staffing Report, described on page 42 of the RFP. 

A. First, how does the State intend to safeguard the proprietary nature of individual salary information?


The State will maintain any proprietary information in accordance with relevant State law and regulations. 

B. Second, what is the rationale for requiring incurred cost information on a fixed price contract (as opposed to auditing same)?  For a small firm to generate this report monthly will be a substantial effort, and serves only to increase the cost of serving the State without appearing to generate any increase in data relevant to contract management.


The Department will use this information for fiscal analysis and   Contract performance and monitoring purposes.

C. Third, how is the Contractor to manage the “Actual Caseload for the Month” field?  For example, if an attorney represents the client in the 1st month of the contract, that client counts towards the attorney’s 100 client caseload per year.  The client’s several subsequent hearings in that year will generate hours, but not result in any additional clients served, such that well before the end of the year, the attorney’s entire monthly effort will appear as if it supports only one or two cases each month.  How can such data have any use when annual figures are required in a different report?

See Amendment #4 and response to question B above.

D. Fourth, why is the State requiring both an annual salary and an hourly pay figure?  For exempt personnel (all attorneys and investigators, the only people considered essential), these ought to point to the same figure, given a 2080 hour year.  For non-exempt staff, the figure will fluctuate month-to-month as overtime accumulates, and again have not relevance unless viewed from an annual perspective.

See response to question B above.

103. What have the dollar values of prior awards been per case to handle adult public guardianship matters?

The Board of Public Works Agenda Items for CINA/TPR (Item 3S BPW 1/3/2007) and APS/APGRB  (Item 2S BPW 1/2/2008) are included with these responses.  The Agenda Items list the rank and pricing for the CINA and Adult contracts.

REVISED RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES #3 DATED 9/4:

19. Will the Department of Human Resources provide a list of the location of all out-of-state placements for each jurisdiction so that cost estimates for travel can be incorporated into the financial proposal since In-Person contact with out-of-state clients is required under Section 3.4 D(2)?  
As of April 2012, clients placed in out-of-state placements were located in the following States and U.S. territories:  Arkansas, California, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, U.S. Virgin Islands, Virginia, Washington, D.C., and West Virginia.   
49. Exactly what was the outcome of the protest and when was it decided?  Where can new bidders see copies of the protest, the Agency’s response and protest decision?  These issues will help us determine whether or not we can offer what the Government wants.
Two protests were filed.  Both were denied. Legal Aid appealed the first protest; however, the IFB was cancelled prior to any agency response or final adjudication. This RFP followed.
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